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The Ivins-Conover farmhouse is 2 1/2 stories, constructed in
3 section. The center section was built by Samuel and William 
Ivins in 1755. The West section was built in 1820 and the new 
east section was added around 1905.

The 2 earlier sections are stucco over brick. On the north 
side as a special precaution against the wind, there is an in­ 
sulating dead air space with plaster over lath. The east section 
is of frame construction. The windows, many of the original poured 
glass, showing the whorls of imperfection, are 6 panes over 6.

The foundation is Jersey sandstone, 16 inches thick. In the 
basement there is a brick archway 6 feet high and 5 foot 3 inches 
wide of keystone design. There is also a bricked up doorway that 
led to an ice house. The brick floor section was a milk cellar.

Pine floor boards throughout the house are random width. 
Some are as wide as 18 inches and contain as many as 65 annual 
rings per board, secured by hand hammered nails. Under the floor 
boards, joists are of mortise and tenon with wooden pegs.

Original wooden and hand hammered metal latches and hinges 
appear on various doors throughout the house.

The corner cupboard with arched door, poured glass panes and 
butterfly shelves is in the original section of the house..

Fireplaces on the west side of the house have simple,pine 
mantels. Warming cupboards are on either side of the fireplace 
on the first floor. The fireplace directly above on the second 
floor is off center to economically provide chimney space for 
one below it.

Six foot doorways lead to the bedrooms with 7 feet
4 inches ceilings. Construction of some room partitions is of 
wood boards covered with lath and plater.

The old barn on the property is 44 feet high and the old 
section is 53 by 69 feet. The hand hewn 9 by 9 inch supporting 
beam is 32 feet long Adze marks of the early woodsmen are visible 
on several beams and posts, joined by wooden pegs. One of the 
widest boards in the barn is a heavy timber plank 20 inches wide.

The farmhouse is presently surrounded by farm land were 
wheat and soybean are grown.
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7. DESCRIPTION

The Ivins/Conover House and Farm, consists of an 18th 
century farmhouse, a large barn and wagon house. The two latter 
structures are approximately 100 feet to the east of the farmhouse. 
This house is a two story brick dwelling with a pitch roof. It 
was built in 3 stages, the first of which dates from 1755, and 
is one room deep and three bays on the first floor and two bays on 
the second. Approximately 1830 the house was extended two bays on 
the west side. This addition created a linear house, five bays 
wide and one deep. In 1850 the roofs were replaced, the result was 
that both parts of the house occur under a common pitch roof. The 
third addition was made to the house approximately 1900, to the 
east side. This addition was a two story frame construction with 
a flat roof the cornice of which is level with the cornice line of 
the old house.

The interiors are disposed as follows. The house is entered 
on the south side, in the center of the three bay 1775 section. 
Contained in this section is, one large room on the first floor, 
and three rooms, a hall and a bath on the second. At one time 
(late 19th century) the ground floor was divided into two rooms.

This is suggested by the ghost-marks of the old partition 
on the floor and the fact, that the two windows which flank the 
front door, are of different sizes. There is also evidence that 
a fireplace was located in the northeast corner of the room. 
Located in the southwest corner of the room is a Queen Anne 
colonial, quarter turn stair with landing.

The two bay 1830 addition has one room on each floor, each 
of which has a central fireplace. These fireplaces have a common 
chimney located in the west (end) wall of the addition. The two 
bay 1900 addition has two rooms on each floor, one behind the 
other. Located on the ground floor is a kitchen and laundry room. 
Attached to this section is a rear porch which is accessible 
through a side (west wall) entrance door.

There are a number of notable interior features among these 
are a fine Georgian corner cupboard nich with an arched, molded 
doorway, exaggerated keystone, and upper cornice (1775 addition).
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7. DESCRIPTION (continued)

Both the fireplaces in the 1830 addition have molded shelves. 
The one downstairs is particularly fine, with its pilasters, 
consoles and frieze. Most of the upstairs partitions are still 
the original wainscotting. The original random width floor 
boards remain throughout.

The exteriors of the 1775 and 1830's portion of the house 
have been stuccoed and scored. This was done at the time of the 
1830 addition. The 1900 addition is clapboarded and the windows 
are one over one. All the windows in the older sections are 
pegged six over six. The front door has been replaced by one of 
glass.

The wagon house is appended to the end of the barn, in a 
linear configuration. The barn is of the English type with a large 
mill sawn swing beam structure. The overall height is forty-four 
feet. There is also a frontal addition under a shed roof which 
was built in the 19th century.

The farm retains a rural setting which is without visual 
intrusion.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Ivins-Conover house, an 18th Century Quaker farmhouse, 
represents a distinct regional style, of which it is one of the 
few surviving examples, in the area. Mor«?ver the house has 
survived intact, with much of the original glass; hardware and 
wainscotting. The setting of the house is also preserved, a£ 
the property is still surrounded by farm land. The present 
owners are maintaining and furnishing the house as accurately 
as possible to its original period.

Generations of the Ivins family lived in the house from 
1775* to 1831. From the list of men, ages 18-43 in Chester 
(former name of Moorestown) available to be part of the N.J. 
Military in 1793 and these desiring to be exempted, the farmers 
appeared to be very plain Quakers, leading conservative lives. 2

The Convers lived in the house from 1853 to 19:26. Isaac 
Conover was a charter member of the nearby Bridgeboro Church 
founded in 1881. His son, Reverend Richard Conover, an ordained 
Methodist minister, was the religious confidant to John D. 
Rockefeller, Sr. during years 1929-1933. 3
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

The Ivins/Conover house, an 18th century Quaker farmhouse, 
represents a distinct regional style, of which it is one of a few 
surviving examples in the area. Features of this style are the two 
over three bay configuration with different sized windows. This 
expresses the importance placed on the interiors rather than the 
exterior "facade" which was typical of South Jersey "Georgian". 
The 1830 addition is constructed basically in the 18th century style. 
This was due to the tendency of South Jersey to be stylistically 
conservative, in that small architectural changes took place over 
long periods of time. The 1900 addition did not destroy any 
architectural detailing of the 1775 section and its style does not 
dominate the older portions. The farmhouse reflects the way in 
which dwellings of this type were expanded to fit the needs of the 
farmer.

This house has survived intact with much of the original glass, 
hardware and wainscotting. The setting of the house is better than 
average, in that the property has been preserved and remains farmland 
The present owners are maintaining and furnishing the house as 
accurately as possible to its original period.

Generations of the Ivins family lived in the farmhouse from 
1775 to 1831. Members of the Ivins family were among those men 
(ages 18-43) listed in Chester (former name of Moorestown) which 
were to make themselves available for service in the New Jersey 
Military, in 1793. They were also among those men who desired to 
be exempted from military service for reasons of religious 
doctrine (they were conservative Quakers).

The Conovers lived in the house from 1853 to 1926. Isaac 
Conover was a charter member of the nearby Bridgeboro Church, 
founded in 1881. His son the Reverend Richard Conover (an 
ordained Methodist minister) was the religious confidant to 
John D. Rockefeller, Sr. during the years 1929 to 1933.


